
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Sub-Committee East 
Wednesday, 18th February, 2015 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee East, which 
will be held at:  
 
Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
on Wednesday, 18th February, 2015 
at 7.30 pm . 
 Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer 

Mark Jenkins (Directorate of Governance) 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564243 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), K Adams, A Boyce, 
Mrs H Brady, W Breare-Hall, T Church, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, 
J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, B Surtees, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 

 
WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE 

 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the 
meeting. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039. 
 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 18 February 2015 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties). 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 16) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee, held on 21 January 

2015 (attached). 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 17 - 66) 
 

  (Director of Governance)  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached 
schedule 
 
Background Papers: 
 
(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 18 February 2015 
 

3 

representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.   
 
(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the properties 
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 18 February 2015 
 

4 

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw 
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then 
withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the 
application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are 
required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee East 2014-15 
Members of the Committee: 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
  

Cllr Jones 

Cllr Waller 

Cllr Adams Cllr Boyce 

Cllr Breare-
Hall 

Cllr Church Cllr Gode 
 

Cllr Grigg 
 

Cllr Morgan 
 

Cllr Philip 
 

Cllr Rolfe 
 

Cllr Stallan 
 

Cllr 
Surtees 
 

Cllr  
Whitbread 
 

Cllr Janet 
Whitehouse 
 

Cllr Keska 

Cllr 
McEwen 
 

Cllr Brady 

Cllr Jon 
Whitehouse 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 

East 
Date: 21 January 2015  

    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30  - 9.35 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), K Adams, A Boyce, 
Mrs H Brady, T Church, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs M McEwen, J Philip, D Stallan, 
B Surtees, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: W Breare-Hall, P Gode, R Morgan and B Rolfe 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Godden (Planning Officer), J Leither (Democratic Services Assistant) and 
P Seager (Chairman's Secretary) 
 

  
 

59. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 
 

60. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

61. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 December 2014 which had been 
adjourned after item 10 and continued on the 5 January 2015 from item 11,  
be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
62. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor T Church 
declared a personal non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of being knowing to the applicant. The Councillor had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Area Planning Sub-Committee East  21 January 2015 

2 

 
• EPF/2670/14 Former Carpenters Arms, High Road, Thornwood, North Weald.  

 
63. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee. 
 

64. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 6 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached to these minutes. 

 
65. PROBITY IN PLANNING  

 
The Sub-Committee received a report regarding Probity in Planning – Appeal 
Decisions for the period 1 April 2014 to 30 September 2014. 
 
It was noted that over the six-month period between 1 April 2014 and 30 September 
2014, the Council received 36 decisions on appeals (29 of which were planning 
related appeals and 7 enforcement related).  
 
KPI 54 and 55 measure planning application decisions and out of a total of 29, 10 
were allowed (34.5%). Broken down further, KPI 54 performance was 4 out of 18 
allowed (22.2%) and KPI 55 performance was 6 out of 11 (54.6%).  
 
Out of the planning appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to refuse 
contrary to the recommendations put to them by officers during the 6 month period, 
the Council was not successful in sustaining the committee’s objection in the 
following case from this sub-committee – EPF/1521/13, the Green Man Public 
House, Broomstick Hall Road, Waltham Abbey.  
 
Members advised that although they sometimes went against Officers 
recommendations it was very satisfying when the Inspector agreed with them. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the report regarding Probity in Planning Appeal Decisions 1 April to 30 
September 2014 be noted. 

 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 10



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2197/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 86 The Plain 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 6TW 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

To construct a front two storey and loft extension (Revised 
application to EPF/0366/14) 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=568252 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of stated in Section 11 of the application form submitted with this 
proposal, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

3Page 11



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2286/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 14 Stanley Place 

Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9SU 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Single storey rear extension. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=568714 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

 

4 Page 12



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2372/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 214-216 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AQ 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Extend retail shop at ground floor and basement to be retail use. 
Part conversion of ground floor shop to residential flats, conversion 
of first floor offices and store to flats and erection of a two storey 
side/rear extension to provide additional accommodation (total six 
flats). 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=569213 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The proposed scheme would result in the loss of a large retail unit in the town centre 
in terms of floor space removed. Whilst a smaller retail unit will remain, this 
reduction in retail floor space, and the creation of two residential flats at ground 
level, would result in unacceptable harm to vitality and viability of the town centre 
due to the loss of the large unit which would be contrary to policies in the National 
Planning Policy Framework and policies TC3 & TC4 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations. 
 

2 The proposed development, by reason of its lack of parking and restricted vehicular 
access, has no off-street parking provision for customers and delivery vehicles and 
fails to provide any space for the safe manoeuvring of goods vehicles making 
deliveries to the store, or the residential flats.   Accordingly, it is contrary to policies 
DBE6(i) and ST6 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the policies of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 
WAY FORWARD: 
 
Members felt that a possible way forward was to provide a more viable retail unit in terms of floor 
space and more appropriate vehicle servicing arrangements.  
 

5Page 13



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2612/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 120 High Street 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AG 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Conversion of existing upper storey A2 offices to three residential 
units. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=570590 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1B and MWSC-EHS-01 
 

3 The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match in material, 
colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing building. 
 

4 The refuse storage area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the 
first occupation of the development and shall be retained for the use of refuse 
storage thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

 

6 Page 14



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2640/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land to the rear of Triptons 

Oak Hill Road 
Stapleford Abbotts 
Essex 
RM4 1JJ 
 

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing buildings, erection of two bungalows 
 

DECISION: Deferred 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=570732 
 
Members deferred this item in order that a site visit could take place. They also requested that 
details of the enforcement history of the site are included in the officers report and the site visit 
photographs are included in the next presentation to the Committee.  
 

7Page 15



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2670/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Former Carpenters Arms  

High Road  
Thornwood  
North Weald 
Essex 
CM16 6LS 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of Restaurant. Erection of 3 town houses and 2 
detached houses. Resubmission following withdrawn application 
EPF/1810/14. 
 

DECISION: Deferred 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=570910 
 
 
This item was deferred for a site visit and to give time for the objectors to be notified of the next 
committee date. Members also requested more information from the Highways Authority regarding 
Officers visits to the site and accidents statistics for the High Road.  
 
 

8 Page 16



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’ 
Date 18 February 2015 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 
 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1 EPF/2640/14 Land to the rear of Triptons 
Oak Hill Road 
Stapleford Abbotts 
Essex 
RM4 1JJ 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

18 

2 EPF/2670/14 Former Carpenters Arms  
High Road  
Thornwood  
North Weald 
Essex 
CM16 6LS 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

26 

3. EPF/2716/14 29 Bower Hill 
Epping  
Essex  
CM16 7AD 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

44 

3 EPF/2789/14 12 Bower Hill 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7AD 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

50 

5. EPF/2817/14 The Old Corn Barn  
Dunmow Road  
Abbess Beauchamp and Berners 
Roding  
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 0PF 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

56 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 
123  

 
 

 
  

 
70.7m

80.2m

7 1 . 0 m

68.0m

C S

EER ,  Bo r o  C o n s t ,  GL  As l y  C o n s t  & L B Bd y

C o  C o n s t  B d yC H

Def

CH

C F

F i v e
t r e e

s

D o r m
e r s

F e r n
l e i g h

M e a d o w  V i e w

T h e

M ur l o
ugh

G l e
n w o

o d

T h e

B e l v
o i r

W i l l o w
s

S t  H e l i e r

Cedar House

Colyton

Standish

Oxford Lodge

M a r so n i a

Bournebridge

Kinglaws

View
House

Standish

K y r
e m

aN a
b b

i t

House

LeighB i r c h

Stores

W o o d c u t t e r s

Twincotts

12

Bloomfield

1

St Francis

7

Wycheways

Gwendolyn

Briar Mount

Dark Spinney

Rise
April

C h e z

To wn e l e y Ho u se

Dingwall

P o
l i c

e  
H o

u s
e T a y s e

J a y s o m

T r i
p t o

n s

W y
k h

a m

Homestead
Farm Cottage

C l o v e l l
y

M
a r
t i n

s

H o
us

e

TheCoppice

Towneley
Cottages

G a
y t o

n s
T h

e

W
o o

d v
i e w

E n
- C

a s
a

G r
a n

g e
w a

y

D u
l c e

 D
o n

u m

W e
n d

u y
n e

G r
e e

n  L
e i g

h

H o
m e

 L e
i g h

J a
l n
a

A m
be

r l e
y

M e
rr y

f ie
ld s

T h
e  

A c
o r

n s

M i z
p a h

E l  S u b  S t a

T r
a v

e r
n e

Ya
m
a a

i t o

M
o n

 A
b r

i

Royal Oak

W
o o

d l a
n d

s

(PH)

C o
t l e

i g h

A b b o t t s b
u r y

L a
n t
i v e

t

F r o
s t e

r l e
y

The Oaks

R o
s e

d e
n e

L o
n g

 A c
r e s

H o
m
e s

te
a d

Y s
a n

n e

H i
l l s
i d
eO a

k  
H i

l l  V
i e

w

The Croft

O a k l e a  H o u s e

L e
c h

l a
d e

B r
o o

k  
E n

d

B i s h o p s  B r o n

R O A D

OA K HI LL

D r
a i
n

Pond

Po n d

P a t h  ( u m )

P a
t h  

(u m
)

GP

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 1 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2640/14 
Site Name: Land to the rear of Triptons, Oak Hill 

Road, Stapleford Abbotts, RM4 1JJ 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 
 

Page 18



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2640/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land to the rear of Triptons 

Oak Hill Road 
Stapleford Abbotts 
Essex 
RM4 1JJ 
 

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Collin Hunt 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing buildings, erection of two bungalows 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=570732 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The public’s rights and ease of passage over public footpath no.26 Stapleford 
Abbotts shall be maintained free and unobstructed at all times. 
 

3 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
development. The assessment shall demonstrate that adjacent properties shall not 
be subject to increased flood risk and, dependant upon the capacity of the receiving 
drainage, shall include calculations of any increased storm run-off and the 
necessary on-site detention. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the 
substantial completion of the development hereby approved and shall be adequately 
maintained in accordance with the approved management and maintenance plan. 
 

4 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 

Page 19



approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.   
 

Page 20



10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

 
 
Members deferred this item at the meeting on 21 January 2015 in order that a site visit 
could take place. The site visit is scheduled to take place on a date prior to this agenda 
meeting. They also requested that details of the enforcement history of the site are 
included in the officer’s report and the site visit photographs are included in the next 
presentation to the Committee. The report below has been updated to include the relevant 
history and photos of the buildings on site will be in the powerpoint presentation to 
committee. 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A. (g)) 

 
Description of site 
 
Triptons is located within the settlement of Stapleford Abbotts. The application site is located to the 
rear of the existing dwelling and currently has three outbuildings which have been used previously 
as workshops, sheds and garages. The outbuildings are directly to the rear of the property known 
as ‘Martins’. Access to the outbuildings is via a private access from Oakhill Road, which runs 
directly adjacent to Triptons. The application site is located within the boundaries of the 
Metropolitan Green Belt and it is not in a Conservation Area.  
 
Description of proposal 
 
The proposed development is to demolish all three outbuildings and to replace them with two 
bungalows. 
 
Relevant History 
 
EPF/1114/13 - Certificate of lawful development for existing use of building as residential. – 
granted certificate of lawfulness -  This application relates to another outbuilding located to the rear 
of the application site. 
 
ENF/0536/12 - Mobile home placed on site – Enforcement investigation carried out, the result of 
which was that the mobile home was not being used for residential purposes and therefore no 
breach of planning control had taken place.  
 
2012 complaint regarding portable buildings on rear of the site investigated but immune from 
action due to length of time they had been present. 
 
Policies Applied 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 

Page 21



CP7 – Urban Form and Quality 
H2A – Previously developed land 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties 
DBE3 – Design in Urban areas 
DBE6 – Car Parking in New Development 
DBE8 – Private amenity Space 
DBE9 – Impact on amenity 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB7A – Conspicuous Development 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to the relevant policies in existing 
plans according to the degree of consistency with the framework. The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight 
 
Consultation carried out and summary of representations received  
 
9 Neighbours consulted – NO COMMENTS RECEIVED 
 
STAPLEFORD ABBOTTS PARISH COUNCIL – OBJECTION – It is considered to be an 
overdevelopment of Green Belt land. There are also highway safety concerns as this site is 
located opposite the busy Tysea Hill T-junction with Oakhill Road, which has a restricted view at 
this location. Members were also concerned for the public right of way footpath which passes 
through the site parallel to the access road.  
 
Comments on Stapleford Abbots Parish Council representation 
 
The public right of way does indeed run through the existing access into Triptons and the 
outbuildings to the rear. The erection of two dwellings will not cause excessive vehicle movements 
which could compromise the safety or functionality of the public footpath.  
 
Issues and Considerations 
 
The new dwellings provide a good standard of living accommodation, suitable amenity space and 
adequate car parking. Therefore the main issues to consider when assessing this application are 
the effects of the proposal on the openness of the Green Belt, the living conditions of neighbours, 
the design of the proposal in regards to the existing building and its setting, highway concerns, any 
land drainage issues and contaminated land.  
 
Principle of development  
 
The site is located within the boundaries of the Metropolitan Green Belt. Currently the site has 
three outbuildings towards the rear; the applicant states that the outbuildings are either entirely 
redundant or no longer required. The National Planning Policy Framework (The Framework) seeks 
to promote the effective use of land by reusing that which has been previously developed 
(brownfield land), provided that it is not of high environmental value. The Framework identifies that 
development in the Green Belt is inappropriate and should be refused unless very special 
circumstances can be demonstrated. However The Framework also gives certain exceptions 
which are by definition not inappropriate. This includes the limited infilling or the partial or complete 
redevelopment of brownfield land, whether redundant or in continuing use which would not have a 
greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it than 
the existing development.  
 

Page 22



The proposed new dwellings will replace the now disused outbuildings, which are of a permanent 
and substantial construction. Given that it is on previously developed land the development is not 
inappropriate. Furthermore the dwellings will be reasonably similar in size to the current 
outbuildings and therefore will not cause any further harm to the openness of the Green Belt. 
Given that it is sited away from public areas of the Oak Hill Road, it will not be visible from most 
public viewpoints. In addition there is a further lawful dwelling on land immediately to the rear of 
the application site (within the same ownership) and there is not therefore a further intrusion or 
expansion of residential character into the green belt.  As such the harm to the Green Belt is 
limited.  
 
It is acknowledged that with residential use, there will be an expected amount of vehicle 
movements and garden paraphernalia. However this is not uncommon in this locality and it will not 
cause excessive harm to the character of the Green Belt. 
 
The location of the proposed dwellings to the rear of Triptons is a back land development which is 
somewhat against the wider pattern of development in the locality. However the need for housing 
in the district is high and there is a pressing need to maximise the potential of sustainable 
brownfield sites. Furthermore, given that the outbuildings already exist to the rear of Triptons, and 
an existing dwelling is already in existence to the rear, the harm caused in the context of the wider 
locality will be minimal.  
 
Living conditions of neighbours  
 
The dwellings are sited approximately 4.6m apart and have different orientations. As such neither 
property will appear significantly overbearing to the other, there will also be no potential 
overlooking into private areas of either dwelling. Therefore the living conditions of both dwellings 
will be of a good standard.  
 
The access to the proposed dwellings will be via the existing private road which runs adjacent and 
in close proximity to Triptons. It is acknowledged that vehicular movements will most likely be 
audible to the occupiers of Triptons, however the vehicular movements associated with two new 
dwellings will not be excessive. As such there will be no significant harm to their living conditions.  
 
The proposed dwellings are sited a significant distance from both Triptons and its adjacent 
neighbour ‘Martins’. As such they will not appear overbearing or cause any loss of light.  
 
Design 
 
The bungalows are of a conventional design and have relatively low ridge heights in the context of 
other properties in the locality. Indeed, the new dwellings will not appear overtly visible when 
viewed from public areas of Oakhill Road.  As such they will not appear overly bulky or prominent 
in the context of the street scene.  
 
Highway issues 
 
The Council’s highway specialist has been consulted as part of this application and responded 
with the following observations:  
 
The proposed development will not generate any more traffic than the existing uses of the 
outbuildings currently on the site. Consequently there is no highway safety or capacity issues 
associated with this development as such from a highway and transportation perspective the 
impact of the proposal is acceptable to the Highway Authority subject to the following measures:  
 
The public’s rights and ease of passage over public footpath no.26 Stapleford Abbotts shall be 
maintained free and unobstructed at all times. This will ensure the continued safe passage of the 

Page 23



public on the definitive right of way and accessibility. The above measures are to ensure that this 
proposal is not contrary to the Highway Authority’s Development Management Policies, adopted 
as County Council Supplementary Guidance in February 2011, and policies ST4 & ST6 of the 
Local Plan.  
 
Land Drainage 
 
The site is located within an Epping Forest Flood zone and therefore it will be necessary for the 
applicant to provide a Flood Risk Assessment, which can be secured through the use of a 
planning condition. Land Drainage consent will also be required before the works are undertaken.  
 
Contaminated Land 
 
Its historic use as a stables and a builders yard and the presence of made ground means there is 
the potential for contaminants to be present on site, domestic dwellings with gardens are classified 
as a particularly sensitive proposed use.  As it should be feasible to remediate potential worst case 
remediation, land contamination risks can be dealt with by way of conditions. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed dwellings do not constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt and do not 
harm its openness. They provide an acceptable level of parking, a good standard of 
accommodation, there will be no harm to the interests of highway safety or function, There will be 
no harm to the living conditions of neighbours and the design is conventional. Therefore it is 
recommended that members of the Planning Committee grant planning permission.  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: James Rogers 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 371 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
  
 
      
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

78.3m

78.0m

81.4m

78.6m

81.4m

78.6m

78.3m

78.0m

20
22

12
14

45

1 4

24

H o m
e l e i g

h
The Shrubbery

1 
to 

3

Woodside

2

1

19

2 8

2 6

47

53

1 1

15

16

5

6

Hall

1 4

13

1
2

57

3 4

61

3 0

59

3 6

3 2

3 8

55

4 0

1

56

T h e  A r d e n

4 8

4 2

60
52

4 4

54

58

50

4 6

19

18
17
a

Works

22

18
a Works

8
7

6

The Lodge

1

7

W
o o d f ie ld  T e r r a c e

13

11
a

The Carpenters Arms
(PH)

H i l l  V i e w
H i l l s i d e

H i l l c r e s t

1

L a  Ru e t t a

Fai r v i ew

T he M
eadow s

E l  S u b  S t a

R e e d s3

R o s c e l l a n
M
o o l t a n

1

M
e e t

3

Hill House

B r e c k
e n r i d g

e

2

Rosario
House

BirchBirch

1

7

P e d n e
Cottage

1

7

19

20
22

12
14

45

1 4

24

Woodside

2

1

2 8

2 6

47

53

1 1

15

16

5

6

Hall

1 4

13

1
2

57

3 4

61

3 0

59

3 6

3 2

3 8

55

4 0

1

56

T h e  A r d e n

4 8

4 2

60
52

4 4

54

58

50

4 6

19

18

Works

17
a

22

18
a Works

8
7

6

The Lodge

1

7

W
o o d f ie ld  T e r r a c e

13

11
a

L a  Ru e t t a

R o s c e l l a n
M
o o l t a n

1

R e e d s

M
e e t

H o m
e l e i g

h
The Shrubbery

1 
to 

3

Rosario
House

The Carpenters Arms
(PH)

H i l l  V i e w
H i l l s i d e

H i l l c r e s t

1

3

Hill House

B r e c k
e n r i d g

e

2

Cottage

Fai r v i ew

T he M
eadow s

E l  S u b  S t a

P e d n e

3

F O
R E

S T
 G

R O
V E

HI GH R OA D

W
E A

L D
 H

A L L  L A N
E

R O W L E Y  M
E A D

C A R P E N T E R S  A R M S  L A N E

T E A Z L E  M E A D

S M I T H S  C O U R T

C A R P E N T E R S  A R M S  L A N E

HI GH R OA D

W
E A

L D
 H

A L L  L A N
E

R O W L E Y  M
E A D

T E A Z L E  M E A D

S M I T H S  C O U R T

F O
R E

S T
 G

R O
V E

LB

TCB

Allotment Gardens
Thornwood Common

Recreation Ground

T r ack

TCB

LB

Allotment Gardens
Thornwood Common

Recreation Ground

T r ack

I n d u s t r i a l  E s t a t e
I n d u s t r i a l  E s t a t e

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 2 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2670/14 
Site Name: Carpenters Arms, High Road  

Thornwood, North Weald, CM16 
6LS 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500 
Page 26



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2670/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Former Carpenters Arms  

High Road  
Thornwood  
North Weald 
Essex 
CM16 6LS 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Des Rees 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of Restaurant. Erection of 3 town houses and 2 
detached houses. Resubmission following withdrawn application 
EPF/1810/14. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=570910 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: DR/CA/01, CA SCH 4 06a, L 6033, CA 11, /P/01, /P1/02, 
/P1/03, /P1/04, /P2/02, /P2/03, /P2/04, /P3/02, /P3/03, /P3/04 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that Order) no extensions generally permitted by virtue of 
Class A and B of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be undertaken without the 
prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 

Page 27



shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 

8 The parking area shown on plan no's: CA SCH 4 06a, CA SCH 4 7, and CA SCH 4 
8 shall be provided prior to the first occupation of the development and shall be 
retained free of obstruction for the parking of residents and visitors vehicles. 
 

9 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion 
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan. 
 

10 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

11 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 

Page 28



completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

12 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

13 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.   
 

14 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

15 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 29



16 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: 
 
1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials 
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing. 
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works. 
 

17 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 
 

18 Prior to the commencement of the development, details shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the Highway 
Authority, for the provision of a footway with a maximum width of 2 metres across 
the site frontage from the Carpenters Arms Lane junction to the existing footway to 
the north of the site. This shall include some radius kerbing, dropped kerbs for 
pedestrians and the provision of dropped kerbs for the 3 vehicular accesses to the 
development. The approved scheme of works shall be implemented prior to first 
occupation. 
 

19 Prior to the first occupation of the development a 1.5m x 1.5m pedestrian visibility 
splay, as measured from and along the highway boundary, shall be provided on both 
sides of the vehicular access. Such visibility splays shall be retained free of any 
obstruction in perpetuity. These visibility splays must not form part of the vehicular 
surface of the access. 
 

20 Prior to occupation of the proposed development, the developer shall be responsible 
for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information Pack for 
sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council, to include six one day 
travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public transport operator. 
 

21 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the mans to prevent the 
discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times. 
 

22 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary of the site. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development 
consisting of 5 dwellings or more (unless approval of reserved matters only) and is recommended 
for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council 

Page 30



functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(d)), since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – 
Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).), and since the recommendation is for 
approval contrary to an objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the 
proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council 
functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)). 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 
 
The application was deferred from the Area Plans Sub Committee East meeting dated 21st 
January 2015 for further information to be obtained and so that a Members site visit could take 
place. 
 
At the previous meeting Members wanted confirmation from Essex County Council that a site visit 
had been undertaken by the Highways Officer and requested information regarding road traffic 
accidents along this stretch of highway. 
 
The Highways Officer has confirmed in writing (via email) and verbally that he has visited the site 
several times as a result of the four recent applications to redevelop the site and has provided 
photographs that he has taken. Furthermore he has confirmed that he frequently drives past the 
site on the way to the Civic Offices (which he visits weekly), so is aware of the nature of the area 
and the traffic flow through Thornwood. 
 
ECC Highways have also confirmed that four accidents have occurred within the vicinity of the site 
within the last 5 years and are as follows: 
 

• 1 fatal accident involving a motorcycle on the wrong side of the road being struck by an 
oncoming vehicle; 

• 2 accidents at the junction of Weald Hall Lane involving right turning vehicles; 
• 1 accident to the south of Weald Hall Lane involving a pedestrian and vehicle. 

: 
It is worth noting that there have been no reported accidents in the vicinity for over 2 years and 
that the accidents above have nothing to do with the site or any existing residential movements 
along this section of the road.  Furthermore the 4 accidents would not meet the criteria for Essex 
Highways, Road Safety Team to investigate implementing any safety measures at this location.  
The fatality would have undergone its own investigation at the time and if any recommendations 
were made as a result, these would have been implemented.  
 
Further to the Highway issues raised, as set out in the report the proposal results in the removal of 
the existing layby at the front of the restaurant, which when used can result in obstruction of the 
view north when exiting Carpenters Arms Lane.  The conditions suggested by the Highway officer,  
which are clearly tailored to this site, and the current application, will result in the provision of a 
pavement in front of the 3 fronting properties, where currently there is none. This will both improve 
pedestrian safety and deter parking in this area to the benefit of sight lines. The original Highways 
response is attached at the end of this report for information. 
 
MAIN REPORT (amended 28/01/15): 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is a relatively large, part two storey part single storey detached building that 
was previously a public house, however was last used as an Indian restaurant (now closed). To 

Page 31



the rear of the building is an associated car park. The building itself is located outside of the 
Metropolitan Green Belt however the remainder of the site is within the Green Belt. 
 
To the immediate north of the site are residential properties fronting the High Road and within 
Smiths Court, and on the opposite side of Carpenters Arms Lane to the south are a row of 
residential properties leading down to Teazle Mead to the west of the site. To the west and east 
(on the opposite side of the High Road) are open fields. The site is located within an EFDC flood 
risk assessment zone and partially within an Environment Agency Flood Zone 2. 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the demolition of the existing building and construction of five houses. 
The existing building was the former public house, which was last used as an Indian restaurant but 
is now vacant. The proposal would consist of a terrace of three houses fronting onto the High 
Road and two detached dwellings fronting Carpenters Arms Lane. 
 
The three terrace dwellings would all be 4.5m in width and 9.5m in depth (with the central dwelling 
being 10.25m deep) with ridged roofs reaching a height of 8.7m and habitable roof areas served 
by rooflights (with the exception of the central dwelling that would benefit from a rear dormer 
window). The detached dwelling at the western end of the site (Plot 1) would be 10m in width and 
a maximum of 8.7m in depth with a ridged roof to a height of 8.2m. This would benefit from a gable 
ended front projection. The second detached house (Plot 2) would be 7.5m in width and a 
maximum of 9.2m in depth with a ridged roof to a height of 8.4m. This would also benefit from a 
gabled front projection with a bay window. 
 
The proposed terrace properties would all be three bed houses and the two detached properties 
would be four bed houses. The terrace properties would benefit from one parking space per unit 
within the front garden areas (accessed from the High Road) and the detached houses would each 
have two parking spaces to the side of the dwellings accessed from Carpenters Arms Lane. There 
are also five additional spaces proposed at the western end of the site within a small car park 
accessed from Carpenters Arms Lane. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1708/12 – Proposed demolition of existing building and construction of six houses – 
withdrawn 05/11/12 
EPF/0340/13 – Demolition of existing building and the construction of five houses – refused 
11/04/13 
EPF/1810/14 – Demolition of existing public house and erection of 12 no. flats – withdrawn 
12/11/14 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CF12 – Retention of community facilities 
CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
CP3 – New development 
CP6 – Achieving sustainable urban development patterns 
GB2A – Development within the Green Belt 
GB7A – Conspicuous development 
H2A – Previously developed land 
H3A – Housing density 
H4A – Dwelling mix 
U2B – Flood risk assessment zones 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 

Page 32



DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties 
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt 
DBE8 – Private amenity space 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention 
LL11 – Landscaping schemes 
ST1 – Location of development 
ST4 – Road safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight. 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
41 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 01/12/14. 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – Objects to this application on the following grounds: 
 
Concern at the boundary line indicating properties being built over the boundary line, there are 
inconsistencies on the plans, no full details of the street scene included with the plans, plan detail 
approximate heights only, whilst the area is not in a flood zone it is within 20m of a watercourse. 
 
There is a concern at the height, overdevelopment, or the proposal. Totally out of keeping with the 
area. There are flooding concerns, there are highway issues with the egress and ingress to the 
site, concern at the parking to the front of the site, and the site lines. Concern at parking concerns 
along Carpenters Arms Lane. The proposal would be prominent in the street scene. There is 
concern as to the density of the proposal, there is concern as it is the last public house in the 
village of Thornwood Common and is a community facility – has a study been carried out to see if 
it can run as a ‘going concern’, if so can details of this be provided. Overlooking into adjacent 
properties. It would have a detrimental effect on the visual amenities of the residents in the area. 
The style of the development is out of character and out of keeping with the area. 
 
Members would like to ascertain what studies have been undertaken in relation to the loss of a 
community facility. Has a survey of the residents of Thornwood Common been undertaken. The 
Carpenters Arms Pub is listed by the Parish Council as an Asset of Community Value (sic). 
 
EPPING SOCIETY – Object. Whilst in principle the site should be redeveloped the bulk of the town 
houses that front onto the High Road would be overbearing and have a negative impact on the 
street scene. 
 
ROSTELLAN, CARPENTERS ARMS LANE – Object as five houses represents overdevelopment, 
due to the impact on the Green Belt, since town houses would be inappropriate for the village, the 
highway safety issues with the High Road, highway concerns revolving around Carpenters Arms 
Lane, loss of light and privacy to neighbours, and due to possible flooding issues. 
 
BRECKENRIDGE, SMITHS COURT – Object to the erosion of the Green Belt, due to highway 
safety concerns about cars reversing onto the High Road, the loss of the existing trees on 
Carpenters Arms Lane, overlooking of neighbouring properties, since the existing car park is used 
by workers on the nearby industrial site, and since it would be preferable to see the site returned to 
its original state of some 15 years ago. 
 

Page 33



HILLVIEW, HIGH ROAD – Not objecting in principle but concerns that the previous application for 
six houses was preferable since only two would have fronted the High Road and there would have 
been less impact on their property, the existing landscaping does not adequately shield the site 
from view, there may be inadequate parking provision, the front houses will be just five foot from 
their house and would result in a loss of light to the bathroom window, concerned about what will 
happen regarding the shared boundary, there is an asbestos roof on the outbuilding that is to be 
demolished, and it is considered that the demise of the former Carpenters Arms was down to 
ignorance towards the rights of neighbours and villagers. 
 
MOOLTAN, CARPENTERS ARMS LANE – Object as this is overdevelopment of the site and 
detrimental to the visual amenities of surrounding residents. The town houses and development on 
this side of Carpenters Arms Lane would be out of character with the area. There would be a loss 
of existing parking. This would set a precedent for further development in the Green Belt that 
would further increase traffic, noise and flooding. There would be a loss of existing vegetation and 
possible flooding effects. The new houses would result in a loss of light, outlook and privacy to 
neighbouring residents. Concerns over land ownership. There would be an increase in traffic and 
highway safety concerns. There are insufficient facilities for residents of the village as it is without 
introducing more houses. 
 
3 CARPENTERS ARMS LANE – Object as the increased residential density and car usage would 
have a detrimental effect upon the quality of life of local residents and would put an increased 
strain on the infrastructure of the village. 
 
HILLHOUSE, 1 SMITHS COURT, HIGH ROAD – Object due to highway safety concerns, the loss 
of the existing trees, loss of privacy to neighbours, the impact on the Green Belt, and since this 
would remove the existing parking area used by employees at the nearby industrial estate. 
 
FLAT 1, NEW HOUSE, CARPENTERS ARMS LANE – Object as this is inappropriate 
development and would cause parking and access problems, there would be a loss of privacy to 
neighbours, highway safety concerns, and the application site includes Green Belt land. 
 
LA RUETTE, CARPENTERS ARMS LANE – Object since the development is out of scale with the 
plot, would result in increased traffic and parking, involves the loss of trees and hedges, potential 
flooding issues, highway safety concerns and due to problems during construction, and regarding 
damage to Carpenters Arms Lane. 
 
2 MIDDLEFIELD, HALSTEAD – Object to the loss of the public house. 
 
20 HIGH MEADOWS, CHIGWELL – Strongly object. 
 
62 EPPING WAY – Object to the loss of the community building. 
 
29 THORNHILL, NORTH WEALD – Object to the loss of the public house. 
 
48 BLACKBUSH SPRING, HARLOW – Object as the development would cause congestion and 
road safety problems, there is inadequate parking provision, and due to the loss of the public 
house. 
 
154 PETERSWOOD – Object as this is overdevelopment of the site, it would not be in keeping 
with the local area, and due to the loss of the public house. 
 
13 CRANSTON GARDENS – Object as the development would not be in keeping with the area 
and would result in parking and access problems. 
 

Page 34



61 MARLBOROUGH ROAD – Object as the development is not in keeping with the local area and 
due to the loss of the public house/restaurant. 
 
21 OAK HILL – Object as it would appear out of place in the area and would result in parking 
problems. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues here relate to the suitability of the site, the impact on the Green Belt, the loss of 
the community use, the character of the area, the neighbours amenities, impact on existing 
landscaping, and with regards to highway and parking issues. 
 
Suitability of the site: 
 
The application site consists of a former public house within the village of Thornwood Common. 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) puts forward a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development and contains guidance within its Core Planning Principles as to what this 
seeks to achieve. Within this, the NPPF states that (amongst other principles) planning should: 
 

• Encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been previously developed 
(brownfield land); 

• Actively manage patterns of growth to make the fullest possible use of public transport, 
walking and cycling; and 

• Always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all 
existing and future occupants of land and buildings. 

 
Although the application site would constitute previously developed land it is not considered to be 
within a sustainable location. Although there is a bus service which runs into Epping and Harlow 
the village does not have essential facilities and services and is not within walking distance of any 
such facilities. Whilst it would be possible to cycle from Thornwood Common into Epping there are 
very narrow pavements along this busy road (High Road – B1393) which make walking and/or 
cycling extremely difficult. The village at present contains one restaurant (the application site), an 
OAP social club, a small farm shop, and a petrol station located outside of the village envelope. 
The unsustainable nature of this site weighs against the development. 
 
Concern has been raised by neighbouring residents that the proposal would result in an 
overdevelopment of the site, however the proposal would equate to a density of approximately 45 
dwellings per hectare, which falls within the recommended site density of 30-50 dwellings per 
hectare as stated within Local Plan policy H3A. 
 
Green Belt: 
 
Whilst the existing building is located outside of the Metropolitan Green Belt the car park to the 
rear is within the designated Green Belt. The previous application to erect five houses on this site 
(EPF/0340/13) was refused planning consent in part for the following reason: 
 

The 2 proposed detached dwellings are within the Green Belt and would constitute 
inappropriate development within the Green Belt and would be harmful to the 
openness and character of this area. No very special circumstances exist to 
outweigh this, or any other identified, harm and therefore the development fails to 
comply with Government guidance in the form of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and policies GB2A and GB7A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 

Page 35



This application has altered the layout of the proposed development over that previously submitted 
so that the dwelling on Plot 2 is located closer to the boundary of the designated Green Belt 
(although still appears to fall within the Green Belt) and the dwelling on Plot 1 would be moved 
further east on the site to reduce the spread of built form and incursion into the Green Belt. Whilst 
the NPPF does allow for “limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously 
developed sites (brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use” this is on the proviso 
that the development “would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the 
purpose of including land within it than the existing development”. As the parts of the site located 
within the Green Belt are currently open areas of hardstanding or vegetated land the erection of 
two dwellings within this area would clearly have a greater impact on the openness of the Green 
Belt than the existing development. As such this exemption would not apply and the detached 
dwellings would therefore constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt. 
 
The NPPF states that “inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and 
should not be approved except in very special circumstances” and that “when considering any 
planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to 
any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to 
the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other 
considerations”. 
 
In terms of the potential benefits of the proposal, the NPPF encourages the reuse of previously 
developed land as one of its core Planning Principles, as does Local Plan policy H2A that states 
“the re-use of previously developed land will be encouraged when considering residential and 
mixed use (including residential) development schemes”. Whilst the loss of the community facility 
will be covered in more detail below the site does constitute previously developed land and has 
been vacant for a number of years and a large section of this is located outside of the Green Belt. 
Therefore in principle the redevelopment of this site is acceptable. 
 
Whilst the proposed new detached dwellings would introduce built form into the Green Belt that 
does not currently exist the entire scheme would result in an overall reduction in built footprint 
across the entire site (both the section within and outside of the Green Belt). The proposed 
development would reduce the footprint of building across the entire site by 25% and would result 
in a reduction in the level of hardstanding by approximately 57%. Therefore the proposal would 
result in an increase in the level of openness generally across the site, albeit not specifically within 
the designated Green Belt. 
 
Further to the above, the application site is partially located outside of the Green Belt and the 
dwelling on Plot 2 appears to be immediately adjacent to Green Belt boundary surrounding the 
village of Thornwood and there are residential properties to the east (along the High Road), to the 
north (in terms of Smiths Court), to the south (along Carpenters Arms Lane), and, although 
detached, to the west by way of Teazle Mead. Therefore the proposed detached dwellings within 
the designated Green Belt in this location would be viewed within the context of the village and 
would have relatively limited harm in terms of openness. 
 
Lastly, Central Government is currently putting great weight on the need to provide additional 
housing in suitable location and Eric Pickles recognised in a statement made in March 2011 that 
“every new home built will create jobs in the UK building industry”. Whilst the site is not particularly 
sustainable (see above) there are economic benefits that would result from the reuse of this 
brownfield site that is currently vacant and offering no benefit to anybody (including local 
residents). 
 
Although two new dwellings within the Green Belt were previous refused on this site 
(EPF/0340/13) it is considered that the relocation of the detached dwellings (which reduces the 
spread of buildings and incursion into the Green Belt), along with the overall reduction in built form 
and hardstanding and the redevelopment of this brownfield site on the edge of Thornwood 

Page 36



(surrounded by residential properties), is sufficient enough to outweigh the harm from this 
inappropriate development. 
 
Loss of community/employment use: 
 
Much concern has been raised that the development would result in the loss of a community 
facility. Local Plan policy CF12 states that: 
 

Permission will only be granted for proposals which will entail the loss of a community 
facility where it is conclusively shown that: 
(i) the use is either no longer needed or no longer viable in its current location; and 
(ii) the service, if it is still needed, is already, or is to be, provided elsewhere and 

accessible within the locality to existing and potential users. 
Where planning permission is granted for proposals that will entail the loss of a 
community facility, the Council will consider favourably alternative uses which fulfil 
other community needs and which satisfy other policies of the plan. Where there is an 
identified need for another facility, the Council will have to be satisfied that the site is 
unsuitable for that use prior to considering the site for open market housing or other 
commercial proposals. 

 
Throughout the previous applications details of the history and trading of the site have been 
submitted. With EPF/0340/13 evidence was provided stating the following: 

• The site was purchased in 2002 and around £350,000 was invested into the business. 
• Between 2002 and 2008 several complaints were received from neighbours that resulted in 
three convictions of the owner costing in excess of £12,000 in fines and costs. 

• In 2006 there was a loss of £93,464. 
• In 2007 there was a loss of £78,425. 
• In 2008 there was a loss of £10,761. 
• In 2009 there was a loss of £3,122. 
• In 2008 a 25 year lease was sold to the restaurant owner, who went missing in 2012 and 
has indicated that he is insolvent. 

 
With the previous application to redevelop the site into 12 flats (EPF/1810/14) the submitted 
Supporting Statement claims the following: 
 

The current owner purchased the property in 2002. Soon after it was extended to provide a 
56 cover restaurant. This was named ‘Ridgeways’ with the then Carpenters Arms being 
retained as a public house. Meanwhile the other public house (in Thornwood), the 
Blacksmiths Arms, was de-licensed and ceased trading due to lack of use. 

 
Trading at Ridgeways continued until September 2008. Financial losses in three years 
(2006 to 2008) amounted to some £183,000. From 2002 to 2008 the restaurant owner was 
beset by noise nuisance complaints resulting in three convictions with fines and costs in 
excess of £12,000. 

 
In 2008, amid growing losses and complaints, the present owner decided to sell the 
business. The property was marketed for a year as a leasehold and there was but one 
applicant who undertook a 25 year leasehold. The entire ground floor premises became an 
Indian restaurant and was renamed. It is understood that, when the restaurant was again 
trading, there were numerous complaints regarding odours. 

 
The leaseholder remained for two years and then left, whereabouts unknown, but by way 
of an email message has indicated insolvency. 

 

Page 37



The sequence of events since 2002 have, therefore, shown that the facility is no longer 
viable or needed, if indeed it ever was. Nor does there appear to be a need for any other 
community facility. Apparently a Parish Council survey in 2011 indicated that the building of 
a new village hall would not be sustainable. Not that the site of the Carpenters Arms would 
have been a suitable one. 

 
There are understandable concerns with regards to the loss of this community facility since this is 
one of the last facilities within the village of Thornwood. Furthermore the above information does 
not constitute a viability assessment and is unsupported by any financial information. The original 
investment in the business in 2002 is given little weight, as these investment costs may have been 
offset by the purchase price of the site. Similarly the £12,000 costs as a result of the applicant’s 
convictions are not considered to be relevant to a financial assessment of the business. 
 
The fact that the current owner has not been able to make a viable business of the site (although it 
appears that they were making headway on this since the stated losses were dramatically 
decreasing year by year) does not mean that another owner/manager could not successfully run a 
business in this property, particularly if the use were to be combined with another facility required 
in this location (such as a shop or post office). Furthermore, although there are other pubs within 
Epping, Coopersale and North Weald, all of which are within 2 miles of the application site, these 
are still some distance from Thornwood Common and are not easily reached by sustainable 
means of transport. As such it is not considered that these would meet the criteria of being 
“accessible within the locality to existing and potential users”. 
 
In addition to the above North Weald Parish Council claim that the site is on their list of Assets of 
Community Value (AVC). The designation of land or buildings as ACV is provided under the 
Localism Act 2011. Nominations for community assets can be made by parish councils or by 
groups with a connection with the community to the District Council. If the nomination is accepted, 
the group will be given time to come up with a bid for the asset when it is sold. The right to bid only 
applies when an asset’s owner decides to dispose of it. There is no compulsion on the owner of 
that asset to sell it. The scheme does not give first refusal to the community group and it is not a 
community right to buy the asset, just to bid. This means that the local community bid may not be 
the successful one. 
 
It is the remit of the Local Authority to designate a site as an ACV however this site has not been 
submitted to the Council for designation. Therefore this property is not on any list as an Asset of 
Community Value. Whilst it may be the intention of the Parish Council to put this forward for 
designation they have not submitted this at the time of writing this report nor is there any 
guarantee that the site would be designated. If a site has an ACV designation this can be a 
material planning consideration if a change of use or redevelopment application is submitted. 
However if ACV status is designated it does not prevent a planning permission being granted (nor 
would the grant of a planning permission override the nominating body’s right to bid). In a reported 
planning decision in Farnborough, Rushmoor Borough Council granted planning permission for the 
conversion of a historic public house to a McDonald’s drive through restaurant despite the building 
having been listed as an ACV (in February 2013) on the basis of the conclusion that limited weight 
should be applied to the ACV designation in determining the application as it did not appear that 
there was an immediate prospect of the community buying the property. Conversely, Wiltshire 
Council refused consent for the conversion of a public house that had been designated an ACV in 
June 2013 to a single dwelling on the basis that the proposal would result in the detrimental loss of 
a local service with a realistic prospect of community use.   
 
Whilst there are clear concerns from local residents regarding the loss of this building this does not 
alter the fact that the site has not been used as a public house since 2008 (with the last use being 
a restaurant, which would rarely be classified as a ‘community facility’) and has been vacant since 
2012. Due to this factor alone it could be reasonably argued that the ‘community facility’ has 
already been lost on this site and therefore the redevelopment of the site would now not be 

Page 38



contrary to Local Plan policy CF12.  Furthermore under Classes A, AA and C of Part 3 of the Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order the former public house (or current 
restaurant) could be converted into an A1 (retail) or A2 (financial and professional services) use 
without the need for planning consent.   Planning permission would however be required for 
change of use back to a public house.  Therefore this further weakens the case for protecting the 
(now no longer lawful) A4 use of the former public house. 
 
Due to the above, whilst the loss of the former public house is regrettable it is not considered that 
there are sufficient grounds to refuse planning consent for the redevelopment of the site since 
there is an argument that the community facility is no longer present on site and therefore has 
already been lost. 
 
Design/character of the area: 
 
The two proposed detached dwellings would be two storey houses with ridged roofs and would 
front onto Carpenters Arms Lane. Whilst this element of the proposed development would 
introduce housing along the currently undeveloped northern side of Carpenters Arms Lane, given 
the presence of the existing dwellings on this lane, along with those at Teazle Mead, it is not 
considered that this would be unduly detrimental to the character of the area. The existing 
properties within Carpenters Arms Lane are predominantly two storey dwellings that vary in size 
and design and as such it is considered that the proposed detached houses would not be unduly 
harmful to the overall appearance of this lane. 
 
The front three dwellings would continue the existing linear development along the western side of 
the High Road and whilst described as ‘town houses’ are actually two storey houses with 
additional rooms in the roof slope (as opposed to traditional three storey town houses with roofs 
above the second floor). The dwellings along this stretch of the High Road are all two storey 
houses varying in size and style. Although not many of the surrounding houses appear to have 
extended into the roof area the exception to this appears to be the property known as Thornwood 
House, which is located on the opposite corner of the High Road and Carpenters Arms Lane that 
contains front and rear rooflights. The second floor (habitable roof space) of the proposed terrace 
of houses would be served predominantly by rooflights, with just a single rear dormer window 
located on the central dwelling. The houses would have a traditional appearance with a central 
‘feature’ terrace benefiting from a front gabled projection and it is considered that these would be 
wholly in keeping with the existing street scene. 
 
The height of the proposed terrace of properties would be 8.7m which, due to the change in land 
level, would be 200mm below the ridge height of Hill View to the north of the site. As such the 
proposed dwellings would continue the existing pattern of roof heights that generally decrease 
(primarily due to the change in land levels) from north to south. 
 
The existing building benefits from several unsympathetic additions, including a flat roofed front 
extension and extremely large rear addition, and is of no architectural merit. As such the removal 
of the existing building could be viewed as a positive impact on the overall character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
Amenities: 
 
The proposed development would remove the existing restaurant building, which has a far greater 
footprint and depth than the proposed houses. The proposed front dwellings would not significantly 
extend beyond the rear wall of the adjacent neighbour (approximately 600mm) and would be 
1.6m/2.5m from the neighbours flank wall. As such the new front houses would be an 
improvement to the visual amenities of the neighbours than the existing public house. 
 

Page 39



The detached house on Plot 2 would be located some 5m from the northern boundary of the site 
and would only contain a single rear first floor window serving a bedroom that would face onto the 
neighbouring land. The dwelling on Plot 1 would have three rear first floor windows (two serving 
bedrooms and one serving a bathroom) located some 6.5m from the shared boundary. Whilst 
these are closer to the shared boundary than would normally be desired the sections of 
neighbouring garden that would be affected would be towards the ends of the neighbour’s amenity 
space and therefore the impact would be less significant. Furthermore any overlooking would be 
partially mitigated by existing planting. 
 
The proposed new dwellings would be located at least 7m from the front boundaries of the 
properties on the opposite side of Carpenters Arms Lane, who themselves have front garden 
areas. Due to these distances there would be no unduly detrimental loss of light, outlook or privacy 
to neighbouring residents as a result of the proposed rear houses. 
 
Whilst the detached dwelling on Plot 2 proposes a first floor flank window facing the proposed 
terrace properties this would be located some 16m from the rear of the terrace houses and, given 
that this forms one development, such an impact would be considered ‘buyer beware’. 
 
The proposed terrace dwellings would be expected to provide at least 80m2 of private amenity 
space and the detached dwellings would be expected to provide 120m2. The properties all appear 
to achieve roughly this desired level (in some cases having around 77m2 and 116m2). Therefore it 
is considered that the level of private amenity space proposed is acceptable. 
 
Landscaping: 
 
Local Plan policy LL10 states that “the Council will refuse to grant planning permission for any 
development which it considers makes inadequate provision for the retention of: (i) trees; or (ii) 
natural features, particularly wildlife habitats such as woodlands, hedgerows, ponds and 
watercourses”. Policy LL11 states that “The Council will (i) refuse planning permission for any 
development which makes inadequate provision for landscaping”. 
 
The proposed development would involve the removal of the existing trees along the boundary of 
the existing car park and Carpenters Arms Lane. These trees have been assessed by the 
Council’s Tree & Landscape Officer and are not considered to be of significant amenity value to 
warrant protecting or retention. Therefore the removal of these is considered acceptable. 
 
Details of how the trees along the northern boundary will be protected during construction would 
be required, however can be dealt with by way of a condition, and it would also be necessary to 
approve details of hard and soft landscaping by way of a condition. 
 
Highways/parking: 
 
The Essex County Council Vehicle Parking Standards requires two parking spaces for each of the 
dwellings plus two visitor parking spaces (0.25 spaces per dwelling rounded up). The proposed 
development meets these requirements since it proposes twelve off-street parking spaces to serve 
the five dwellings, which would be laid out so that each of the three terrace properties would have 
a single parking space within the front garden and the two detached dwellings would have two 
spaces within their side gardens. The remaining five spaces would be arranged within a small car 
park at the western end of the site. Whilst this is a somewhat unusual layout, in that the second 
space of each of the terrace houses would be some distance from the houses, this allows for more 
flexible parking arrangements (i.e. some residents may only own one car and therefore would only 
use their front space, whereby others may own three cars and therefore could make use of a free 
space within the car park – either by way of the parking being unallocated or by private 
agreement). 
 

Page 40



Essex County Council raised no objection to the level of parking provision proposed or its 
location/layout. Whilst the dwellings at the front of the site would all be served by a parking space 
accessed directly off of the High Road, which would result in cars either entering or leaving the site 
in reverse, there are several other examples of this within the village and it is not considered that 
this would further impact on highway safety or the free flow of traffic. Furthermore the removal of 
the existing lay-by at the front of the site would remove an existing highway hazard since cars 
parked within this lay-by currently block sight lines to the north of the Carpenters Arms Lane 
junction. The proposed off-street parking to the front of the terrace properties would be further 
back from the edge of the highway and therefore would improve sight lines over the existing 
situation. 
 
An objection has been received regarding the loss of the existing car park and the impact that this 
would have on on-street parking within the area, particularly since it is stated that workers of the 
nearby industrial estate use this area to park in. As the car park is private property and access is 
only granted for public parking out of goodwill the loss of this car park cannot be given any weight 
as the area could be closed off from public use without the need for planning permission. 
 
Other issues: 
 
The application site is located within an EFDC flood risk assessment zone and is partially within an 
EA Flood Zone 2 and is of a size where it is necessary to avoid generating additional runoff. As 
such a flood risk assessment should be agreed for the development, however this can be done by 
way of a condition. 
 
Due to the electrical substation and previous development on this site there is the potential for 
contaminants to be present on site. As domestic dwellings and gardens are classified as a 
particularly sensitive use contaminated land investigations and possible mitigation measures will 
need to take place on site. These can be controlled by the imposition of conditions. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Whilst the proposed development would not be located in a sustainable location and would involve 
the erection of two new dwellings within the Metropolitan Green Belt it is considered that the harm 
from this (particularly since the development is located on the edge of the village of Thornwood 
and surrounded by residential development) would be limited and would be suitably outweighed by 
other matters, including the benefits of redeveloping this brownfield site and the general economic 
and visual benefits the development would bring. 
 
Whilst there is much concern that the proposal would result in the loss of a community facility the 
building has not been a community facility (a public house) for a number of years and the change 
of use from the former A4 use, or the current A3 use, to alternative uses does not require planning 
permission. As such it is considered that the community facility previously offered on this site has 
already been lost. 
 
The proposed development meets the required off-street parking provision as laid out within the 
Essex County Council Vehicle Parking Standards, would provide sufficient private amenity space 
for future residents, complies with the recommended site density requirements of Policy H3A, and 
would not be unduly detrimental to the amenities of surrounding residents (and may have some 
benefit through the removal of the restaurant that often drew complaints from nearby residents). 
The loss of the existing car park is not given much weight since this is private land that could be 
made unavailable without consent, and the concerns regarding the impact on Carpenters Arms 
Lane (and any potential encroachment onto this) are not material to the planning considerations 
since this is a private road and therefore maintenance and upkeep issues (as well as those of 
ownership) are civil matters. 
 

Page 41



There has been no objection to the development from Essex County Council Highways with 
regards to highway safety or capacity concerns, and no objection from the Tree & Landscape 
Officer regarding the loss of existing trees. 
 
As a result of the above it is considered that, on balance, the application complies with the 
guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and the relevant Local Plan 
policies and is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

6 6
. 8
m

67.4m67.4m
6 6

. 8
m

6 4 .6 m
6 4 .6 m

52
66

44

3 43 4

3131

33

1

33

1

4 3

44

4 5

2

11

42
34

42
34

52

4 3

5 5

66

44

5 5

4 5

44

2

6 5

9 0

74

6 5

9 0

74

17

55a

21

17

5 7

5 7 a

21

5 7

55a

5 7 a

28
2 6

2 4
28

2 6
2 4

7

Gas Gov

7

30

Gas Gov

30

T H
E  O

R C H
A R D S

B
O

W
E R

 H
I L

L

T H
E  O

R C H
A R D S

B
O

W
E R

 H
I L

L

TCBTCB

Industrial EstateIndustrial Estate

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 3 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2716/14 
Site Name: 29 Bower Hill 

Epping CM16 7AL 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 44



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2716/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 29 Bower Hill 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7AL 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Tom Jenkins 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Two storey rear extension and loft conversion with raising of ridge 
level and front and side dormer windows.  
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=571194 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 The proposed window openings in the flank elevations at first floor level shall be 
fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the 
floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained 
in that condition. 
 

 
 
 This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
29 Bower Hill is occupied by a bungalow with a hipped roof and long flat roofed projection to the 
rear. Bungalow dwellings are the dominant style along the road but many have been extended, or 
are in the process of being extended in the roof. Gardens in the area are relatively long and 
generous.  
 

Page 45



Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks consent to extend the dwelling by converting the roof to form a chalet style 
bungalow. This would involve a remodelling of the roof, with the insertion of two front dormers and 
two dormer windows on each side to form a flat topped roof. The roof would be hipped with a half 
hip on the rear elevation. The proposed rear extension would project further into the site. The ridge 
level would raise by approximately 0.70cm.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1200/76 - Details of garage and rear extension. Grant Permission - 18/10/1976. 
EPF/0156/87 - Single storey rear extension. Grant Permission - 23/04/1987. 
 
Policies Applied:  
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
DBE9 – Excessive Loss of Amenity to Neighbouring Properties 
DBE10 – Design of Residential Extensions  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  
 
Summary of Representations:  
  
6 neighbours consulted: 2 replies received.  
 
27 BOWER HILL: Objection. Concern that the proposed development will extend excessively 
beyond our rear boundary and will result in overshadowing of our garden area. The extension will 
result in a loss of light to our kitchen/family room. The dwelling on No29 already extends 
approximately 3-4m in front of our house and the extension at the back appears to be up to 6.0m 
in places. We feel the rear extension needs to be reduced by approximately 3.0m.  
 
EPPING SOCIETY: Objection. Concern that the side facing dormers will result in the overlooking 
of neighbouring properties.  
 
EPPING TOWN COUNCIL: Objection. Concern that the proposed extension does not enhance the 
existing building and what is proposed is not as sympathetic as other similar extensions nearby. 
Concern that the dormers are an unneighbourly development that will result in overlooking of 
neighbouring properties, particularly as one of the houses is already served by a side facing 
window.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The key considerations in this application relate to any potential impact on neighbouring amenity 
and design. 
 
Design  
 
In recent years quite a number of dwellings on Bower Hill have been given consent to convert to 
chalet bungalows. It is apparent that the applicant in this instance has referenced developments 
which have been constructed nearby, or are currently in the process of being constructed. These 
involve the insertion of dormer windows in the roof slope and the creation of a flat roofed top. In 
that respect the proposed scheme would not be out of character and would conform to the 

Page 46



emerging pattern of development along the road. The new ridge level would not be excessively 
high.  
 
The recently adopted NPPF requires that newly designed development responds to local 
character. It is considered that this scheme successfully strikes the balance and would not 
excessively dominate the streetscene.  The proposed design, bulk and scale of this submission is 
considered an acceptable way to extend this dwelling which as stated responds to the evolving 
character of the road as evident at the nearby recently extended No51and No47 which is currently 
being extended. 
 
The rear of the building would retain a half hip and this is considered an appropriate design and 
has previously been agreed as acceptable at No11 Bower Hill which is also in the process of being 
constructed (EPF/ 0891/13).  
 
Amenity  
 
Concern has been expressed that side facing windows would result in overlooking of neighbouring 
properties. However as the windows are serving a bathroom and are secondary bedroom windows 
they can be reasonably conditioned as obscure glazed. An objection letter has been received from 
the occupants of No27 who have raised concern about loss of amenity. The block plan submitted 
is in error and does not show that the adjacent dwelling has been extended. The proposed 
development at the application site would project by approximately 3.0m beyond a utility room 
close to the boundary. However it would be set slightly off the boundary and 3.0m is a reasonable 
distance for an extension to project beyond a rear flank corner, particularly when the room at this 
location is a utility/bathroom served by obscure glazed windows. It is not considered there would 
be serious loss of light to this room. The proposed extension would project broadly the same depth 
as the main rear wall of No27, serving the kitchen/family room, and therefore there would be no 
material impact. There would be an increased overshadowing of the garden area adjacent to the 
new built form from about midday. However the property has the benefit of a relatively spacious, 
deep garden and it is not considered that the impact would be excessive. A utility room on the 
boundary which is set further back from the kitchen and is served by obscure glazed windows 
would not be seriously affected.  
 
The proposed building would project for some distance beyond the rear building line of No31. This 
addition would undoubtedly have some material impact on the amenity of occupants of this 
dwelling despite the presence of a solid screen on the boundary. However, again occupants 
benefit from a generous garden area and the extension is single storey with a gabled roof that 
would project away from the boundary. The garden is east facing and there would be some 
overshadowing of the area close to the rear wall which is occupied by a conservatory. This 
conservatory is already overshadowed by the existing fence and single storey rear extension 
which would reduce overall material impact. As stated there will be some impact, and this is a very 
balanced point, but on balance it is not considered that there would be excessive harm to 
residential amenity. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed extensions to the house would not result in an excessively dominant dwelling in the 
streetscene and it would not be out of character. Impact on neighbour amenity is not considered to 
be on a level to refuse consent. It is therefore recommended that the application is approved with 
conditions.  
 
 
 

Page 47



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

73.8m

81.1m

67.4m67.4m

73.8m

81.1m

6 56 5

Bower
Court
Bower
Court

17

21

17

5 7

5 7 a

21

5 7

5 7 a

Garnon Cottage

to 8

1 to 13

Garnon Cottage

to 8

1 to 13

13  t o 1 6
13  t o 1 6

11

9 t o 12

El  Sub Sta11

9 t o 12

El  Sub Sta

511 to 4 5to 4

10
16

18

10
16

18

6

1

6

1

1  t
o  1

2

12 Coniston
Court

1  t
o  1

2

12 Coniston
Court

Garage

28
2 6

2 4

Garage

28
2 6

2 4
30 30

1 2

1

2

1 2

1

2

15

Laundr y

2 4

Laundr y

15

2 4

EppingEpping

TankTank

StationStation

B OWE R  V A L E

H IL L CREST W
AY

B
O

W
ER

 H
I L

L
B

O
W

ER
 H

I L
L

B OWE R  V A L E

H IL L CREST W
AY

Tank

TCB

SP

LB

MP 16.75

T C
B

T C
B

TCB

SP

Tank

LB

MP 16.75

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 4 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2789/14 
Site Name: 12 Bower Hill 

Epping CM16 7AD 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 50



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2789/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 12 Bower Hill 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7AD 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Carlo Henrich 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Proposed vehicle crossover and hardstand driveway. 
Resubmission following refusal of EPF/1577/14. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=571590 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The vehicular access shall be constructed at right angles to the highway boundary 
and to the existing carriageway. The width of the access at its junction with the 
highway shall not be less than 3m and shall be provided with an appropriate 
dropped kerb vehicular crossing of the footway of no more than 4.5m in length. 
 

3 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is located on the western side of Bower Hill approximately 20 metres north of 
Bower Vale within the town of Epping. The site itself is rectangular in shape and it has a modest 
slope that falls across it from north to south. Located towards the front of the site is a double storey 
semi detached dwelling with a small private garden area to the rear. There is no off street parking 
or vehicle access to the site. The front boundary treatment consists of iron railings which are 
locally listed.  

Page 51



 
The site is located within a built up residential area that comprises of terrace style and semi 
detached buildings. The site is not located within the green belt or in a conservation area and is 
not within the setting of any listed buildings.  
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
This is a revised application following the refusal of consent for a similar scheme in 2014 
(EPF/1577/14). Planning permission is once again sought for the construction of a new dropped 
kerb to the front boundary along Bower Hill to provide vehicle access into the site on a new hard 
paved area. This would involve the removal of the iron railings.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1577/14 - Proposed vehicle crossover and hardstand driveway. Refuse Permission – 
28/08/14.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Local Policies: 
 
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
ST4 Road safety 
ST6 Vehicle parking 
L11 Landscape schemes 
U3B Sustainable drainage systems 
DBE1 Design 
DBE9 Loss of amenity 
HC13A – Local List of Buildings 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  
          
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
TOWN COUNCIL: Objection. Committee object to this as the railings are an historic feature and 
should be retained. The new application, in trying to achieve a greater depth of forecourt, is now 
having a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the house as well as the frontage. The 
application appears to do nothing to address the principle previous reason for refusal i.e. highway 
safety. The Committee felt that the house is a good example of a Victorian Villa with its own street 
and that this is worth retaining.   
 
3 neighbours consulted; 1 reply received.  
 
EPPING SOCIETY: Objection. There seems no difference from the previous application and there 
is still a concern that this development would lead to road safety concerns. The existing railings 
are one of the last remaining examples of work by “Cottis of Epping” and are worth retaining.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider related to road safety/parking, the loss of locally Listed railings and 
the comments of consultees.  
 

Page 52



Road Safety/Parking  
 
A similar application was refused consent in 2014 for the following reasons; 
 

1. The proposed new vehicle crossover would result in poor sight splay lines resulting in an 
unacceptable degree of hazard to all road users to the detriment of highway safety. This is further 
compounded by the slowing and turning of vehicles associated with the use of the access which 
would lead to the conflict and interference with passage of through vehicles along this stretch of a 
Secondary Distributor Highway. Therefore the vehicle crossover is contrary to policy ST4 of the 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the National Planning Policy Framework.   

 
2. The proposal does not accord with the Parking Standards September 2009 in terms of providing 

sufficient space (depth) on the hard standing area in front of the dwelling house for parking of 
vehicles. This would therefore lead to inappropriate kerbside parking and unusable parking spaces 
that would be detrimental to highway safety contrary to policies ST4 and ST6 of the Adopted Local 
Plan and Alterations and the National Planning Policy Framework.   
 

The first issue is to therefore determine whether these previous concerns have been overcome 
and whether the revised layout results in other issues 
 
As with the previous application Essex County Council has been consulted but on this occasion do 
not object to the development. As the previous application was refused on highway and parking 
related reasons, the removal of this objection is of some material weight. With regards to the first 
reason for refusal the Highways Authority state that accident data for this stretch of road 
demonstrates that the other driveways nearby with similar characteristics are operating safely and 
in that respect there appears no good reason to refuse consent for this development. The lack of 
any boundary treatment would help maintain suitable visibility for pedestrians and motorists and 
the Highways Authority are now content that reasonable visibility exists and that the site splays are 
adequate.  
 
With regards to reason No2, the depth of the area of hardstanding has been increased to 5.0m 
such that a car could be parked clear of the pavement in line with policy requirements. Therefore 
the issue of inappropriate kerbside parking has been addressed. It is considered that in light of this 
revised advice the previous reasons to refuse planning permission have been overcome.  
 
Locally Listed Railings/Design   
 
The railings in front of No12 Bower Hill are of local interest and have been added to the local list 
which recognises buildings/structures of local architectural or historic importance. They date from 
the late 19th century and, according to the Epping Society, were manufactured by the prominent 
local iron foundry, Cottis Iron Works. The firm was established in the 1850s and became the 
largest employer in Epping at its height. The foundry stood on what is now Cottis Lane in Epping 
and manufactured agricultural machinery as well as domestic/decorative ironmongery. The railings 
are a rare surviving example of domestic railings in Epping by the Cottis Iron Works and, as such, 
every effort should be made to retain and maintain them in accordance with policy HC13A. 
However the policy only encourages the maintenance of such buildings/structures and that they 
will receive special consideration in the exercise of the development control process. In reality this 
only provides limited protection, unlike in the case of a Listed Building/structure which can bring to 
bear the force of legislative protection. For example Locally Listed Buildings/Structures are not 
exempt from the entitlements such as the General Permitted Development Order and in that 
respect the applicant is legally entitled to remove the railings without the need for any planning 
consent.  Therefore given that the railings could be removed without the need for planning 
permission, it is considered that their removal can not form grounds for refusal of the application. 
 

Page 53



Concern has been expressed that the increase in the size of the parking space would result in a 
detrimental impact on the setting of this dwelling, a Victorian Villa of some architectural merit. It is 
recognised that this dwelling has a setting worth preserving but again there is no mechanism 
within the planning regulations to prevent the increase in the area of hardstanding in order to 
provide a parking space which meets the policy requirements. Furthermore it is not considered 
that this increase in size would be seriously detrimental to the character of the dwelling/road and a 
number of dwellings nearby of a similar style are served by similar parking spaces.   The provision 
of an off street parking space will also have the advantage of reducing on street parking in the 
locality. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal it is considered that previous concerns have been addressed and 
that no new issues have been created which would justify refusal. It is therefore recommended 
that consent is granted subject to conditions.  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
     
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

61.3m

67.4m

South

Barn

North Acre Barn

Barn
West East

Barn

Cottage

Longbarns

Longbarns
G ra n it e  T ra d in g  Co

Coopers

S C HOOL  L A NE

B  
1 8

4

Pond Pond

Pond

Swimming Pool

T r a c k

F B

LB

GP

Te n n i s  C o u r t

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 5 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2817/14 
Site Name: The Old Corn Barn, Dunmow Road  

Abbess Beauchamp and Berners 
Roding, Ongar CM5 0PF 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500 
Page 56



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2817/14 

 
SITE ADDRESS: The Old Corn Barn  

Dunmow Road  
Abbess Beauchamp and Berners Roding  
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 0PF 
 

PARISH: The Rodings - Abbess, Beauchamp and Berners 
 

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Paul Breedan and Mr Steven Pasquini 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of existing buildings, removal of hardstanding areas and 
the erection of six dwellings with parking and landscaping.  
Resubmission following refusal of EPF/1808/14. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=571697 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1872-01, REVO 2040A, 2041B, 2042. 
 

3 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself.  
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Class A, B and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be undertaken without 
the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

5 The proposed window openings in the flank elevations at first floor level shall be 
entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

Page 57



6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

7 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development the access, parking and 
turning arrangements, as shown in principle on drawing no.REVO/2041 Rev B, shall 
be fully implemented and retained as such thereafter. 
 

8 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times. 
 

9 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council. 
 

10 Before any works commence on the demolition of buildings on site a full Bat Survey 
to ascertain if bats are present on site and, if appropriate, a further Mitigation 
Strategy shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for agreement in writing 
with a working methodology to minimise impact on bats if present in the building. 
Development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the agreed strategy and 
methodology. 
 

11 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

12 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  

Page 58



[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

13 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

14 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

15 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.   
 

16 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 

Page 59



condition.   
 

17 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan. 
 

18 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

19 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development 
consisting of 5 dwellings or more and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, 
Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(d)) 
 
Description of Site:  
 
The application site is located at an isolated location within the boundaries of the Metropolitan 
Green Belt and on the Dunmow Road. The site is occupied by a large former agricultural barn and 
a smaller single storey brick built building. The site area is approximately 0.4 hectares. The site 
has a lawful use for business and is currently occupied by a company manufacturing kitchen 
worktops. An accessway onto the highway is located at the south west corner of the site. A 
number of listed barns, which have been converted to residential, are located on the opposite side 
of the road.  
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
This is a revised application following the refusal of consent for a similar six dwelling scheme in 
October 2014 (EPF/1808/14). This application amends the design but has the same layout with 
the same access being utilised off Dunmow Road to serve a communal internal road to the front of 
the houses. Amenity space would be provided by way of rear garden areas. The houses would be 
semi detached with deep roofs and accommodation provided over three floors. The dwellings 
would have projecting front and rear gables in a cross wing style with a dormer window on the 
front roof slope.  
 
Relevant History:  
 
EPF/1475/97 - Refurbishment and change of use of existing barn to office and general industrial 
B2 use and ancillary works. Grant Permission - 22/06/1998.  
EPF/1404/99 - Change of use of former agricultural building without compliance with condition 4 of 
EPF/1475/99 (personal to applicant condition). Grant Permission – 02/08/00.  

Page 60



EPF/1808/14 - Demolition of existing buildings, removal of hardstanding areas and the erection of 
six dwellings with parking and landscaping. Refuse Permission – 08/10/14 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment.  
GB2A – Development in Green Belt 
GB7A – Conspicuous Development  
DBE1 – New Buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt 
DBE9 – Neighbour Amenity 
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes  
RP4 – Contaminated Land 
U3A – Catchment Effects 
U3B – Sustainable Drainage Systems  
NC4 – Protection of Established Habitat 
H2A – Previously Developed Land 
H5A – Provision for Affordable Housing 
H6A – Site Thresholds for Affordable Housing 
H7A – Levels of Affordable Housing 
HC12 – Setting of Listed Buildings 
I1A – Planning Obligations   
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  
          
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL: No comment received at the time of the report (Objection to application 
EPF/1808/14).  
 
8 neighbours consulted and Site Notice Displayed: 1 reply received.  
 
COOPERS: Objection. Concern about road safety and the fact that Dunmow Road is a dangerous 
road and young children could venture from the houses onto the roadway. The development 
provides an under provision of parking as these are four bedroom houses and will likely have more 
than two occupants that are drivers. This application could open the floodgates for other similar 
developments.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider are the general principle of the development, whether the proposal is 
appropriate within the Green Belt and issues relating to design and neighbour amenity. The 
comments of consultees are another material consideration as is the planning history of the site. 
The previous application was refused for two reasons and it is important to assess if these 
previous concerns have been overcome with this submission.  
 

Page 61



Principle of the Development/Green Belt  
 
The site was granted consent to change use to industrial in the late 1990’s having previously been 
in agricultural use. A number of the representations received make the point that the 
redevelopment of the site would result in the loss of a local employment provider. This is 
undoubtedly the case and until recently the Council had local policy support which required an 
applicant to demonstrate that the site was no longer suitable for employment purposes before 
other uses was considered (E4A & E4B). However recently adopted national guidance in the 
NPPF has resulted in a policy shift on how a lot of issues are addressed and this has included the 
recognition of sites such as this as being brownfield and suitable for other uses in the Green Belt. 
Paragraph 89 of the NPPF recognises the partial or complete redevelopment of brownfield sites 
which do not have a materially greater impact on the open character of the Green Belt as being 
potentially acceptable. The legal advice the Council has received suggests that policies that 
encourage the long term protection of employment sites are no longer compliant with national 
policy.  
 
The site does appear to be in operation as a fully functioning business at present and the change 
of use will potentially lead to displacement. Therefore it is not a case of this site being redundant 
and the need to find an alternative use being pressing. The NPPF does promote the support of 
rural enterprise and this would not be achieved with this redevelopment (Para 28). Furthermore 
the site is at an unsustainable location for housing and would encourage the increased use of 
motor vehicles. However in terms of the location of business it is also not a particularly sustainable 
site, although it is important to encourage rural business and to make provision for rural 
employment opportunities.  
 
It is considered a defendable case could be made to refuse this application on the loss of this site 
to residential. However the planning system continues to move towards greater flexibility with 
regards to meeting housing needs. This has included changes to the Prior Approval system which 
permit the change of use from office and agricultural buildings to residential. Under this “fast track” 
system the Government has recently gone out to consultation on proposed changes from B1 
industrial to residential. It is clear the intention is greater flexibility with regards to future land uses 
and in truth six dwellings could be provided in the Green Belt where the provision of housing has 
always been greatly restricted.  
 
The application did follow pre-application negotiations with the Council and this has resulted in a 
redrafting of the scheme from four large detached dwellings to the proposed six semi-detached 
houses. The proposed design will be considered later in this report but it is generally considered 
that the scheme would not have a materially greater impact on the open character of the Green 
Belt. The existing buildings include a, by nature, large bulky storage building. It is not necessarily 
considered that existing volume can be used to justify the same amount of residential building. 
However some low set buildings would also be removed. Cultivated gardens would have an 
impact on open character but as they would replace a concrete yard area this is acceptable. On 
balance the proposed scheme is considered in compliance with paragraph 89 of the NPPF. The 
overall volume of built form on site would reduce. The principle of redevelopment for residential 
use is therefore agreed as being an acceptable form of development. The Parish Council have 
previously made the point that this site’s development was only ever acceptable because it 
provided rural employment. This may be the case but the planning system has undergone 
significant change of late and this must form the starting point for a lot of proposed schemes. With 
regards to national policy this scheme has been found acceptable and not in conflict with the 
purposes of maintaining a Green Belt.   
 
Affordable Housing 
 
The lack of provision for affordable housing on site formed one of two reasons to refuse the 
previous scheme. The reason stated; 

Page 62



 
“The proposed development would result in the provision of six new residential properties in the 
Metropolitan Green Belt. Local plan policies indicate that such developments require a provision of 
50% affordable housing and no provision has been put forward. No case has been presented that 
such a provision would render the development unviable and therefore in conflict with Paragraph 
173 of the NPPF. In the absence of such a case it is considered that affordable housing provision, 
in line with local and national policy, is necessary to make this development acceptable in planning 
terms. The proposed development is therefore contrary to national policy contained in the NPPF 
and local plan policies H5A, H6A and H7”A. 
 
As stated the redevelopment of the site had involved discussions at pre-application stage. One 
issue of contention has been the provision of affordable housing. The Council has been consistent 
in the view that having regard to local plan policies this site triggers a requirement for on site 
provision of 50% affordable housing. The Council are of the view that the local policies are 
generally compliant with the sections of the NPPF which relate to affordable housing. No evidence 
was provided that demonstrated that the burden of providing affordable housing would render the 
development unviable and therefore a request for affordable housing would be in conflict with 
Paragraph 173 of the NPPF. This section of the NPPF outlines how careful consideration should 
be given to scheme viability and that the requirements for affordable housing should ensure that 
any scheme retains a “willing landowner and developer to enable the development to be 
deliverable”. In essence, the costs of the development should not make it unviable. As it could not 
be clearly demonstrated that either affordable housing on site or a payment in lieu would render 
the development unviable a refusal on this ground was considered sound.  
 
In the period between the previous application and this new submission the Government has, 
through the national Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) document amended guidance on affordable 
housing provision. This details how on sites which are located in an area with a population which is 
less than 3,000 and the applicant is providing less than 10 dwellings or the houses have a floor 
area of <1,000 sq m then affordable housing contributions cannot be sought. This is the case in 
this instance (floor area 990 sq m) and therefore this site and development is, under new guidance 
which came into force on 01/12/14, exempt from such contributions. This reason to refuse consent 
has therefore been addressed.  
 
Design and Layout  
 
The applicant proposes three pairs of semi detached dwellings which would be a duplicate design. 
The Parish Council had raised the concern that the design is not suitable in a rural area and that 
some variation in the design should be incorporated. Although there are Listed Buildings on the 
opposite side of the road this new development would really create its own streetscene and there 
would be no impact on the special setting of this group of buildings. It is not considered that the 
replication of design is particularly out of character in a rural area and rural cottages often form 
short runs of the same design.  
 
The second reason to refuse the previously submitted scheme was on design grounds as follows;  
 
“The proposed design by reason of the slack roof pitch, wide gable span and excessive ridge 
height results in a squat appearance which would have a suburbanising effect which would be out 
of character at a rural location. The proposed development is therefore considered contrary to 
national guidance in the NPPF and local plan policies CP2, DBE1 and DBE2”. 
 
The applicant had been advised that if brownfield sites in rural locations are to be considered 
appropriate forms of development the finished scheme should be traditionally rural in character. In 
order to address design concerns the resubmitted scheme has been altered in the following ways; 
 
1) The pitch of the roof has been increased to 50 degrees and the span of the front gable reduced. 

Page 63



2) The eaves height of the gables has been reduced. 
3) The eaves of the central section have been bought down to ground floor height. This gives a 
one and half rather than two storey appearance.  
4) Dormer windows are introduced to serve the first floor at the front.  
5) Chimneys are now shown.  
6) Small feature window on the side elevations. 
 
The proposed design is considered to be more rural in nature and more suitable for this site.  As 
stated, it is crucial that if brownfield sites are to be redeveloped as housing within rural areas that 
they are rural in character and, as much as can be achieved, assimilate into their surroundings. 
This has been achieved in this instance. Details of the finished materials are of high importance 
and can be agreed by condition.  
 
With regards to the proposed layout this is relatively conventional with a slip road access to the 
front and garden areas to the rear. The plans indicate close boarded fencing on the rear and flank 
boundaries which are not particularly traditional in rural areas. However there is the consideration 
of affording future occupants a reasonable level of privacy. There would be quite a bit of parking to 
the front and no garages are proposed. This, to some degree, would lead to a car dominated 
appearance but on a short run of dwellings this can be, on balance, accepted.  
 
Amenity  
 
The proposed properties would provide a reasonable amount of amenity space for future 
occupants. Furthermore there is open countryside to the rear of the site. Side facing windows at 
first floor level can be reasonably conditioned as obscure glazed.  
 
All housing developments in Essex which would result in the creation of a new street (more than 
five dwelling units communally served by a single all-purpose access) will be subject to The 
Advance Payments Code, Highways Act, 1980. The Developer will be served with an appropriate 
Notice within 6 weeks of building regulations approval being granted and prior to the 
commencement of any development must provide guaranteed deposits which will ensure that the 
new street is constructed in accordance with acceptable specification sufficient to ensure future 
maintenance as a public highway. 
 
With regards to highway safety the proposed scheme is acceptable and not likely to lead to 
hazardous conditions. A neighbour has raised concern about the speed of vehicles which travel 
along Dunmow Road and whether this can be addressed. This is not strictly a planning matter and 
as has been stated the proposed development is not considered to contribute to hazardous 
highway conditions and an existing access would be used to exit the highway.  
 
Two parking spaces are proposed for each dwelling plus two off street spaces and this is 
considered a reasonable provision and in compliance with policy requirements.  
 
Trees and Landscaping  
 
There are no significant trees on site, although there is an established hedge along the roadside. 
Any development will require a robust and sympathetic landscaping scheme, consisting of native 
species to ensure the houses sit appropriately with the surrounding landscape.  
 
Ecology 
 
The building is potentially suitable for bats. Therefore a bat survey and any further mitigation that 
survey recommends needs to be carried out before demolition of the buildings commences.  
 

Page 64



Land Drainage  
 
The development is of a size where it is necessary to avoid generating additional runoff and the 
opportunity of new development should be taken to improve existing surface water runoff. A Flood 
Risk Assessment (FRA) is therefore required. The applicant is proposing to dispose of foul sewage 
main sewer. However the main sewer is a considerable distance from the site therefore further 
details are required. A condition requiring approval by the Local Planning Authority of foul drainage 
details prior to development commencing is therefore necessary. The applicant is proposing to 
dispose of surface water by sustainable drainage system. Further details are required. A condition 
requiring approval by the Local Planning Authority of surface water drainage details prior to 
development commencing is also necessary. 
 
Contaminated Land  
 
Due to its use as an Agricultural Farmyard and Industrial Works and the presence of infilled gravel 
pits in the surrounding area, there is the potential for contaminants to be present on site. This 
issue can be addressed with appropriate conditions.  
 
National Grid  
 
Owing to the presence of National Grid apparatus in the vicinity of the site the applicant is advised 
to contact National Grid prior to commencement of any development.   
 
Conclusion:  
 
The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle. Furthermore amendments 
to the scheme and revised government guidance on affordable housing contributions have 
addressed previous issues of concern. It is therefore recommended that consent is granted 
subject to conditions.  
 
 
  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:  contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee East - members photo sheet 14-15 version 2

	3 MINUTES
	Minutes
	64 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

